
City of Kodiak Regular Council Meeting Agenda for October 24, 2019 
7:30 p.m., at 710 Mill Bay Road, Assembly Chambers (Room 232) 

I. Call to Order/Roll Call
Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance

II. Previous Minutes
Approval of Minutes of the October 10, 2019, Regular Council Meeting ......................................1 

III. Persons to Be Heard
a. Public Comments (limited to 3 minutes) (486-3231)

IV. Unfinished Business

V. New Business
a. Resolution No. 2019–20, Authorizing the Borrowing From the Alaska Clean Water Fund of

an Aggregate Amount Not to Exceed Five Million Four Hundred Thirty Five Thousand
($5,435,000) to Pay For the Cost of  an Upgrade to the City of Kodiak Wastewater
Treatment Plant Ultraviolet Effluent Disinfection Facility………………………….……….6 

b. Resolution No. 2019–21, Accepting a 2019 State Homeland Security Grant From the State
of Alaska Division of Homeland Security and Emergency Management for ALMR
Compliant Capability Radios, Replacement Tsunami Sirens, and Emergency Shelter
Bedding……………………………………………………………………………………...12 

c. Authorization of Professional Services Agreement for State Legislative Lobbying Services
with Dianne Blumer of Blumer & Associates........................................................................26 

d. Authorization to Cancel the November 28, and December 26, 2019, Regular Meetings and
Authorize the City Manager to Schedule Special Meetings if Needed...................................32 

e. Certification of Election..........................................................................................................34

VI. Staff Reports
a. City Manager
b. City Clerk

VII. Mayor’s Comments

VIII. Council Comments

IX. Oath of Office

X. Executive Session
a. Discussion With the City Attorney About the City of Kodiak - Ocean Beauty Lease

Agreement Post Termination Issues………………………………………………………...40 

XI. Audience Comments (limited to 3 minutes) (486-3231)

XII. Adjournment



(This page left intentionally blank.) 



8486 

DRAFT 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

OF THE CITY OF KODIAK 
HELD THURSDAY, OCTOBER 10, 2019 

IN THE BOROUGH ASSEMBLY CHAMBERS 

I. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Mayor Pat Branson called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. Councilmembers Laura B. Arboleda,
Charles E. Davidson, Terry J. Haines, Richard H. Walker, and John B. Whiddon were present
and constituted a quorum. Councilmember Randall C. Bishop was absent. City Manager Mike
Tvenge, City Clerk Nova Javier, and Deputy Clerk Michelle Shuravloff-Nelson were also pre-
sent.

Salvation Army Corps Sergeant Major Dave Blacketer gave the invocation and the Pledge of Al-
legiance was recited.

II. PREVIOUS MINUTES

Councilmember Whiddon MOVED to approve the minutes of the September 26, 2019, regular
meeting, as presented.

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Arboleda, Davidson, Haines, Walker, and Whiddon in
favor. Councilmember Bishop was absent. The motion passed.

III. PERSONS TO BE HEARD

a. Proclamation: Filipino American National History Month

Councilmember Arboleda read this proclamation, which urged all citizens to celebrate the rich 
history and contributions of Filipino Americans in Kodiak. 

Aida Llave accepted the proclamation on behalf of the Filipino American Association. She said 
October is recognized as the National History Month and it is a time to celebrate the Filipino 
contributions within the community. She appreciated the support and celebration from the Mayor 
and Council. 

b. Public Comments

David Blacketer congratulated the store manager at the Salvation Army for recently attaining 
her U.S. citizenship. He commended those who get their US citizenship by going through the 
rigorous process.  

IV. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

a. Second Reading and Public Hearing, Ordinance No. 1390 Authorizing a Lease of Prop-
erty Adjacent to Pier II With Petro Star, Inc. D/B/A North Pacific Fuel

1



 OCTOBER 10, 2019 8487 
 

Mayor Branson read Ordinance No. 1390 by title. Ordinance No. 1390 would authorize the City 
of Kodiak to lease a portion of Pier II uplands known as Van Rows 11 and 12 (easterly), to Petro 
Star Inc, D/B/A North Pacific Fuel. Petro Star has leased the parcel for five-year terms continu-
ously since 1999 and desires to renew the lease for an additional five years. The current lease ex-
pired on July 30, 2019.  
 
Councilmember Walker MOVED to adopt Ordinance No. 1390. 
 
Mayor Branson closed the regular meeting and reopened the regular meeting when no one came 
forward to testify. 
 
The roll call vote was Councilmembers Arboleda, Davidson, Haines, Walker, and Whiddon in 
favor. Councilmember Bishop was absent. The motion passed. 

 
V. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Resolution No. 2019–19, In Support of the Alaska Department of Fish and Game’s Tra-
ditional and Historic Management of the Kodiak Salmon Fishery, and Maintaining the 
Location of the January 2020 Board of Fisheries Meeting in Kodiak  

 
Mayor Branson read Resolution No. 2019–19 by title. This resolution was proposed by the 
Salmon Work Group to the Kodiak Fisheries Work Group (FWG) on September 26, 2019. The 
resolution addresses two topics: The challenges by the Cook Inlet and Chignik fishermen to re-
duce or to shut down portions of the salmon fishery; and the expected attempt to have the Alaska 
Board of Fisheries meeting addressing Kodiak salmon issues currently scheduled in Kodiak to 
occur in Anchorage 
 
Councilmember Arboleda MOVED to adopt Resolution No. 2019–19. 
 
Councilmember Whiddon stated approximately two years ago the Salmon Work Group was 
formed to work on behalf of Kodiak, which is funded by the City and Borough. He said there 
have been various threats to the Kodiak fisheries and this resolution specifically advocates to 
keep the Board of Fish (BOF) meeting in Kodiak and for Kodiak to retain the traditional fisheries 
of the area. 
 
Councilmember Davidson thanked Councilmembers Whiddon and Haines for serving on the 
Fisheries Work Group.  
 
Councilmember Haines thanked all individuals that attend and contribute to the Fisheries Work 
Group and he stated he supports the Salmon Work Group’s efforts.   
 
Councilmember Whiddon clarified that the Fisheries Work Group does not engage in allocation 
issues; however, this resolution advocates for Kodiak fisherman and the community as a whole.  
 
The roll call vote was Councilmembers Arboleda, Davidson, Haines, Walker, and Whiddon in 
favor. Councilmember Bishop was absent. The motion passed. 

 
b. Authorization to Purchase Radio System Upgrade from Motorola Solutions 

2



OCTOBER 10, 2019 8488 

The City of Kodiak operates a VHF land mobile radio system utilizing Motorola equipment 
which was installed in 2005. The City owns six radio frequencies, which are utilized by the Po-
lice Department, Fire Department, Public Works Department and the Harbor Master’s Office. 
This also includes a frequency used by both Bayside and Women’s Bay Fire Departments. In ad-
dition, the portable and vehicle radios used by the Police Department and Fire Department are 
Motorola, and the computer aided dispatch (CAD) software is owned by Motorola Solutions. 
This upgrade will replace like components with like components: it’s not a completely new in-
stallation. 

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to authorize a purchase agreement with Motorola Solutions 
and City in an amount not-to-exceed $399,623 for Gold Elite Dispatch Console equipment and 
implementation with funds coming from Project Number 4054 Gold Elite Dispatch Console; and 
not-to-exceed $368,000 for Quantar Repeater and Voting Receiver equipment and implementa-
tion with funds coming from Project Number 4053 Quantar Repeater and Voting Receiver and 
authorize the City Manager to execute the documents on behalf of the City. 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Arboleda, Davidson, Haines, Walker, and Whiddon in 
favor. Councilmember Bishop was absent. The motion passed. 

VI. STAFF REPORTS

a. City Manager

Manager Tvenge said the Parks and Recreation department has been busy preparing the indoor 
ice rink, which will open next week on Tuesday, October 15. He referred the public to the Parks 
and Recreation’s Facebook page for more information. He shared that the radar speed indicator 
signs that flash at vehicles oncoming speed will be installed on Mission Road by the end of this 
month. He shared that there will be two signs installed along the roadway and he reminded eve-
ryone that the speed limit on Mission Road is 20 mph. He said the Monashka Reservoir is just 24 
inches from being full. He shared that the low water stretch has caused a bit of turbidity or dis-
coloring of the water but that will slowly disappear. He highlighted that Sewer Lift Stations 3 
and 4 are operational as of last week. He shared that Gorman Rupp the manufacturer was in town 
for the startup and everything ran smoothly. He stated he was proud to announce that over the 
past three years they have replaced the four downtown lift stations and improved critical infra-
structure.  

b. City Clerk

Clerk Javier gave an overview of the upcoming work session and regular Council meetings.  She 
highlighted the Fisheries Work Group schedule and said that October 18 is a holiday and the City 
offices will be closed. 

VII. MAYOR’S COMMENTS

Mayor Branson thanked the contributions of the Filipinos in the community. She highlighted that
the City Manager’s report noting it is very information and it is available on the City website.

3



OCTOBER 10, 2019 8489 

She thanked outgoing Borough Mayor Rohrer for his contributions, availability, and public ser-
vice to the community.  

VIII. COUNCIL COMMENTS

Councilmember Walker thanked the City employees.

Councilmember Haines encouraged people to keep their garbage contained and to be bear aware.

Councilmember Davidson thanked the public for voting and encouraged citizens to vote. He re-
ferred to Pearson Brodie’s letter regarding use of public space for potential market space. Mayor
Branson stated she asked Pearson Brodie to develop a proposal for Council consideration.

Councilmember Whiddon thanked Mayor Branson and Councilmember Davidson for their ser-
vice and for running for reelection. He referred to the time he became an American citizen and
he congratulated the individual in Dave Blacketer’s comments. He said that he works many Fili-
pinos at his work site and said they are the fabric of the community. He provided a fish update
regarding cod, Pollock, and halibut.

Councilmember Arboleda said she was excited about the Baranof multi-purpose facility design
and she stated she has heard positive feedback. She thanked her parents for being positive role
models and said she is proud to be a part of the Filipino community.

IX. AUDIENCE COMMENTS

None

X        ADJOURNMENT

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to adjourn the meeting.

The meeting adjourned at 8:03 p.m.

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Arboleda, Davidson, Haines, Walker, and Whiddon in fa-
vor. Councilmember Bishop was absent. The motion passed.

CITY OF KODIAK 

MAYOR 
ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

Minutes Approved:  

4



NEW BUSINESS 

5



6



7



Resolution No.  2019-20 
Page 1 of 3 
 

CITY OF KODIAK 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 2019–20 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK 
AUTHORIZING THE BORROWING FROM THE ALASKA CLEAN WATER 
FUND OF AN AGGREGATE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED FIVE MILLION FOUR 
HUNDRED AND THIRTY FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($5,435,000) TO PAY THE 
COST OF AN UPGRADE FOR THE CITY OF KODIAK WASTEWASTER 
TREATMENT PLANT ULTRAVIOLET EFFLUENT DISINFECTION 
FACILITY 

WHEREAS, pursuant to AS 46.03.032 the Alaska Department of Environmental 
Conservation ("DEC") may make loans to municipalities from the Alaska Clean Water Fund 
("Clean Water Fund") to pay the cost of planning, designing, building, constructing, and 
rehabilitating public wastewater collection, treatment and discharge systems; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Kodiak ("City") is eligible to borrow from the Clean Water 
Fund for the purpose described above, and the interest rates to be paid by the City on loans 
from the Clean Water Fund are favorable compared to the rates charged by other sources of 
funds that are available to the City; and 

WHEREAS, Article VI, Section 3 of the Kodiak City Charter authorizes the City to 
borrow money and issue evidences of indebtedness therefore, the principal and interest of 
which are payable solely out of and the only security for which is the revenue of a revenue-
producing utility or enterprise when authorized by the Council for the acquisition, construction, 
reconstruction, repair, improvement, extension, enlargement, and/or equipment of the utility 
or enterprise; and 

WHEREAS, Article VI, Section 3 of the Kodiak City Charter requires that utility 
revenue obligations of the City be ratified by a majority of the qualified voters of the City only 
so long as voter approval is required by state law, and under the constitution and statutes of 
the State of Alaska, the City may issue utility revenue obligations without voter approval; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has previously authorized spending $600,000 in FY 
2018 to pay for an initial condition assessment of the Wastewater Treatment Plant 
(“WWTP”) including site, buildings, Lift Station #5, Lift Station #1B, force mains, 
electrical systems, SCADA system, including partial design of the UV effluent 
disinfection facility and all process systems as Phase I of an anticipated four phase 
upgrade of the WWTP (“the Project”) contingent on obtaining a loan of $600,000 from 
the Clean Water Fund (“the Loan”); and  

WHEREAS, the Loan is a continuation of the previously approved loan and 
will increase borrowings by $5,435,000 and the loan is necessary and in the best 
interest of the City and its residents to pay part of the cost of the Project; and 

Attachment A

8



Resolution No.  2019-20 
Page 2 of 3 
 

WHEREAS, the ADEC permit number AK0021555 is dated July 1, 2018 and 
includes a mandated schedule of compliance based on securing project construction 
funding, completing a facility design for ADEC approval, commencement of 
construction and the treatment of effluent in accordance with permit requirements. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK, 
ALASKA that: 

Section 1.  Definitions. In addition to the terms defined in the recitals above, the 
following terms shall have the following meanings in this Resolution: 

"Gross Revenues" means all rates and charges and other income, in each case derived 
by or for the account of the City from the ownership, leasing, or operation of the 
Wastewater Utility, except proceeds from the sale of bonds or notes, any grants received for 
the Wastewater Utility, and interest received and profits derived from the investment of 
moneys obtained from such sources or from moneys held in any fund solely to pay or secure 
the payment of any bonds or notes issued in connection with the Wastewater Utility. 

"Operating Expenses" means the current expenses incurred for operation, maintenance, 
or repair of the Wastewater Utility of a non-capital nature, and shall include without 
limitation payments required by any source of supply expenses; fuel expenses; treatment, 
transmission and distribution expenses; customer accounts expenses, administrative and 
general expenses, insurance premiums, lease rentals, legal, regulatory and engineering 
expenses; payments to pension, retirement, group life insurance, health and hospitalization 
funds; or other employee benefit funds  which  are  properly chargeable  to current 
operations; interest  on customers' deposits, payroll tax expenses, and any other expenses 
required to be paid by law or permitted by standard practices for public utility systems 
similar to the properties and  business of the Wastewater Utility (adjusted to reflect 
public ownership) and applicable in the circumstances. Operating Expenses shall not 
include any allowances for depreciation or amortization or any principal, redemption price 
or purchase price of, or interest on, any obligations of the City incurred in connection 
with the Wastewater Utility and payable from Gross Revenues or any fee or charge in lieu of 
City taxes.   

"Wastewater Utility" means the wastewater utility of the City as the same may be 
added to, improved and extended for as long as the Loan is outstanding. 

Section 2.  Obligation of Loan. The obligation to repay the Loan shall be a 
special obligation of the City, payable and secured only as provided herein.  Neither the faith 
and credit nor the taxing power of the City is pledged to the payment of the principal of or 
interest on the Loan.   The Gross Revenues less the Operating Expenses of the Wastewater 
Utility are hereby pledged to repayment of the Loan. 

Section 3.  Authorization and Purposes of Loan.  For the purpose of providing part of 
the funds required to pay the cost of the Project, the City is hereby authorized to borrow 
money from the Clean Water Fund in the form of the Loan in an aggregate principal 

9



Resolution No.  2019-20 
Page 3 of 3 
 

amount not to exceed $5,435,000. 
 

Section 4.  Loan Agreement.  The City hereby is authorized to submit an 
application for and to enter into a loan agreement with ADEC for the Loan ("Loan 
Agreement").  Subject to the limitations provided in Sections 2 and 3, the City Manager is 
hereby authorized to determine the principal amount, interest rate, maturity, and other details 
of the Loan; provided that the final maturity of the Loan shall not be more than 30 years from 
the date of the Loan Agreement and the interest on the Loan shall not exceed one and one-
half percent per annum without additional Council approval. 

 
Section 5.  Authority of Officers.  The City Manager, the Finance Director, and the 

Clerk are, and each of them hereby is, authorized and directed to do and perform all things 
and determine all matters not determined by this resolution, to the end that the City may 
carry out its obligations under the Loan Agreement and this resolution. 

 
Section 6.  Severability.  If any one or more of the provisions of this resolution shall 

be declared by any court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, then such provision 
shall be null and void and shall be deemed separable from the remaining provisions of this 
resolution and shall in no way affect the validity of the other provisions of this resolution or of 
the Loan. 

 
Section 7.  Effective Date.  This resolution shall become effective upon adoption by 
the Council. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 

CITY  CLERK

 CITY OF KODIAK 
 
 
 

 ______________________________ 
MAYOR 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 Adopted:  

10



(This page left intentionally blank.) 

11



12



13



Resolution No. 2019–21 

CITY OF KODIAK 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 2019-21 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK ACCEPTING 

A 2019 STATE OF ALASKA HOMELAND SECURITY PROGRAM GRANT FROM 

THE STATE OF ALASKA DIVISION OF HOMELAND SECURITY AND EMERGEN-

CY MANAGEMENT FOR ALMR COMPLIANT CAPABILITY RADIOS, REPLACE-

MENT TSUNAMI SIRENS, AND EMERGENCY SHELTER BEDDING 

WHEREAS, the City of Kodiak has been awarded a 2019 State Homeland Security 

Program Grant (SHSP) in the amount of Five Hundred Eighty Six Thousand Sixty Three Dollars 

and Twelve Cents ($586,063.12) for the purchase and installation of equipment to support local 

emergency management activities; and 

WHEREAS, these funds will be used to purchase and install ALMR compliant capable 

Portable Radios, Tsunami Sirens and Emergency Shelter Cots essential to emergency manage-

ment and community preparedness; and 

WHEREAS, emergency management activities have been incorporated into the on-going 

operations of the City of Kodiak; and 

WHEREAS, these grant funds do not require any local match, although all purchases are 

subject to state approval. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, 

that the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute and administer any and all documents 

required for the acceptance and management of this grant award. 

CITY OF KODIAK 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

Adopted: 

Attachment A

14



Attachment B

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



Dianne Blumer, Blumer & Associates Page 1 of 4 
Professional Services Agreement No. 247157 
January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020 

Professional Services Agreement No.  247157 
Between 

The City of Kodiak 
and 

Dianne Blumer, d.b.a. Blumer & Associates 

THIS CONTRACT is between the City of Kodiak, hereinafter referred to as “City,” an 
incorporated municipality in the State of Alaska, and Dianne Blumer who will serve as the primary 
contact for the City of Kodiak with assistance from associates under her direction, d.b.a. Blumer & 
Associates, hereinafter referred to as “Consultant,” a private consulting firm with its principal place 
of business in Anchorage, Alaska. 

1. TERM AND PAYMENT
1.01 This contract shall be effective on January 1, 2020, and continue through December

31, 2020. This agreement may be extended on the same terms and conditions herein 
for another year through December 31, 2021 by Council action.  

1.02  The City shall pay the Consultant the sum of dollars ($43,450) for calendar year 2020 
and the same amount for 2021, payable in installments monthly. 

 The cost of this agreement is $ 43,450 which includes Lobbying services of $43,200 
and APOC registration fee of $250. This cost amount excludes travel or other 
expenses which require advanced approval by the City of Kodiak.   

2. CONTRACT SERVICES
2.01 The Consultant shall perform those professional services described in Appendix A,

Scope of Work, which is attached and incorporated by reference.
2.02 The Consultant will be in Juneau for an appropriate amount of time to effectively

represent the City in the Legislative session. 

3. TERMINATION
Either party may terminate this contract, for cause or convenience, upon thirty (30) days
written notice to the other. Notice shall be deemed to have been fully given or made or sent
when made in writing and delivered in person or deposited in the United States mail, certified
and postage prepaid, and addressed to the respective addresses set forth above the signatures
of this agreement. The address to which any notice, demand, or other writing may be given or
made or sent to any party may be changed by written notice given by such party as above
provided.

4. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES
It is understood the Consultant will lobby on issues of identified concern to the City.

5. PERMITS, LAWS, AND TAXES

28

Attachment A



Dianne Blumer, Blumer & Associates Page 2 of 4 
Professional Services Agreement No. 247157 
January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020 

5.01. The Consultant shall acquire and maintain in good standing all permits, licenses, and 
other entitlements necessary to the performance of her duties under this contract. All 
actions taken by the Consultant under this contract shall comply with all applicable 
statutes, ordinances, rules, and regulations imposed by the governmental authority. 

5.02 The Consultant shall pay all taxes pertaining to performance of this agreement. The 
Consultant expressly agrees to comply with all requirements of AS 24.45.011 through 
24.45.181 and any administrative regulations issued by the State of Alaska to 
implement those provisions of law. 

6. INSURANCE
During the term of this contract, the Consultant shall provide and maintain, at the
Consultant’s own expense, automobile liability insurance for any vehicle owned and operated
by the Consultant in connection with performance of this contract.

7. ASSIGNMENTS
The Consultant may not assign interest in this Agreement to another person or delegate any
duties under this contract without prior written approval of the City. Any attempt by the
Consultant to assign any interest or delegate duties under this Agreement shall give the City
the right to terminate this contract.

City of Kodiak Dianne Blumer 
710 Mill Bay Road 6058 Azalea Drive 
Kodiak, AK 99615 Anchorage, AK 99615 

________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Mike Tvenge, City Manager  Dianne Blumer, Blumer & Associates 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 
Nova M. Javier, City Clerk  

29



Dianne Blumer, Blumer & Associates Page 3 of 4 
Professional Services Agreement No. 247157 
January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020 

EXHIBIT “A” 
SCOPE OF WORK 

The Consultant shall communicate directly or through Consultant’s agents with any appropriate 
public official for the purpose of influencing Legislative or Administrative action as directed or 
requested by the City, and in the best interests of the City. 

In this regard the Consultant shall: 

A. Receive guidelines for lobbying efforts from the City Council through the Mayor, City
Manager, or City Clerk and work within such guidelines to promote, advocate, support,
modify, oppose, or delay any appropriate Legislative or Administrative action. Modifications
to these guidelines may be made from time to time by the City.

B. Communicate with the Mayor, City Manager, and City Clerk for the purpose of acquiring
information, statistics, studies, and analyses to use as back-up and support material in support
of Consultant’s lobbying activities.

C. The Consultant will be called upon to arrange meetings and/or conferences, provide
information and/or research, and provide such other services as required or convenient to
enhance communication between the City and all branches of the State Government.

D. The Consultant shall provide reports and professional advice to the City regarding
Consultant’s lobbying efforts on behalf of the City. The scope of work should include
legislators, interim communications, engagement with Commissioners and Division
Directors, and the Governor’s office. Work may include, but is not limited to:
1. Identify state legislation and legislative proposals that may impact Kodiak;
2. Identify proposed state regulatory changes that may impact Kodiak;
3. Work with the City Council, Clerk, and Manager to develop positions on relevant

legislation;
4. Assist  the  Mayor  in  arranging  municipality  lobbying  visits  to  Juneau  to  help

ensure productive meetings;
5. Draft legislation and amendments, as necessary;
6. Lobby for the City’s position on legislation and regulatory matters, including:

o Direct contact and communication with state legislators and staff;
o Direct contact and communication with state agencies;
o Direct contact and communication with associations and other interest groups

that may

30



Dianne Blumer, Blumer & Associates Page 4 of 4 
Professional Services Agreement No. 247157 
January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020 

have similar interests or interests that conflict with those of Kodiak; 
7. Draft letters and talking points on legislation as necessary;
8. Maintain close working relationship with Mayor and Council and designated

members of staff;
9. Provide written monthly reports to the Mayor, City Manager, and City Clerk during

the session and as requested or needed during the interim, and such reports shall
include, but shall not be limited to, contacts and progress made on behalf of the City,
changes in the status of capital project funding requests, legislation of interest to the
City, and any anticipated problem areas of which the Consultant becomes aware;

10. Provide one visit annually to Kodiak for briefings in person to the Council, public
and staff on key issues, legislative committees or legislative session status;

11. Exercise best professional judgment in all matters relating to work for the City and
immediately report any position or action taken which involves an area of
uncertainty or controversy;

12. Work in conjunction with the Kodiak Island Borough’s state lobbyist on matters of
interest or concern to both governments when directed by the City.

31



32



(This page left intentionally blank.) 

33



OCTOBER 24, 2019 
Agenda Item V. e. Memo Page 1 of 1 

MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

To: Mayor Branson and City Councilmembers 
From: Nova Javier, City Clerk 
Date: October 24, 2019 

Agenda Item: V.e.  Certification of Election

SUMMARY: The City of Kodiak held a regular election October 1, 2019, and voters casted ballots for 
the two-year Mayoral position and the two three-year City Council positions. The Canvass Board met on 
October 9, 2019, to tally the votes of the admissible questioned, personal representative, and absentee 
ballots, together with votes counted on election night. The final results of the October 1, 2019, 
Municipal City election are below: 

Mayor—One Two-Year Term 
Pat Branson ............................................ 398 
Write-ins .................................................. 19 

City Council—Two Three-Year Terms 
Charles Davidson .......................... 365 
John Whiddon ................................ 342 
Write-Ins .......................................... 24

VOTE PERCENTAGE HISTORY: 
Election Year City Registered Voters Votes Cast Percentage 
2015 3,469 597 17.2% 
2016 3,598 856 23.8% 
2017 3,574 603 16.9% 
2018 4,013 403 10% 
2019 4,056 454 11% 

Of the 4,056 registered City voters, 454 cast eligible City ballots, for an 11 % voter turnout, which is 1% 
higher than last year. 

NOTES/ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A: Certificate of Election 
Attachment B: Canvass Report of Final Results 

PROPOSED MOTION: 
Move to certify the results of the October 1, 2019, regular election and declare Pat Branson 
elected Mayor for a two-year term and Charles Davidson and John Whiddon elected to the City 
Council for three-year terms.  

34



CITY OF KODIAK, ALASKA
2019 Municipal Election

Certificate of Election

WE, the undersigned MAYOR and CITY CLERK of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, do
hereby certify that the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, in accordance with KCC
2.28.015, have received the report of the Canvass Board for the 2019 Municipal
Election, held on the 1std day of October 2019 and have determined that the election
was validly held and have certified the following results:

Mayor, one two-year term
Number of votes cast: ........................ 417 

Candidate Votes Received
Pat Branson ....................................... 398
Write-ins ............................................. 19

Councilmember, two three-year terms
Number of ballots cast: ...................... 731

Candidates Votes Received
Charles Davidson ............................. 365
John Whiddon .................................. 342
Write-ins ............................................. 24

By the authority vested in us by the laws of the State of Alaska and the Charter
and Code of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, we do hereby affix our hand and seal.

MAYOR

CITY CLERK

DATED this 24th day of October 2019.

Attachment A

35



Attachment B

36



OATH OF OFFICE 

37



CITY OF KODIAK, ALASKA

Oath of Office
October 24, 2019 

I, _____________, do solemnly affirm that I will support the Constitution 

and laws of the United States, the laws of the State of Alaska, the ordinances of 

the City of Kodiak, and that I will faithfully and honestly perform the duties of 

_________, so help me God. 

CITY OF KODIAK 

Elected Official’s Signature 

ATTEST: 

Nova M. Javier, City Clerk 

38



(This page left intentionally blank.) 

39



40


	Agenda
	20191010 Regular Meeting Minutes
	NEW BUSINESS
	V. a. Res. No. 2019-20
	Attachment A
	V. b. Res. No. 2019-21
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	V. c. Authorization of Professional Services Agreement for State Legislative Lobbying Services with Dianne Blumer of Blumer & Associates
	Attachment A
	V. d. Authorization to Cancel the Nov. 28 and Dec. 26 2019 Regular Meetings and Authorize the City Manager to Schedule Special Meetings if Needed
	V. e. Certification of Election
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	OATH OF OFFICE
	X. a. Executive Session



